UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT OF SOUTH DAKOTA WESTERN DIVISION

SEP 2 0 2016

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

CR 16-50100 REDACTED

Plaintiff,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

vs.

First Degree Murder – Felony Murder (18 U.S.C. §§ 1111 & 1153)

KATRINA PAULINE SHANGREAUX, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, and SONYA DUBRAY

Assault Resulting in Serious Bodily Injury of a Minor (18 U.S.C. §§ 113(a)(6), 1153 and 3559(f)(3))

Defendants.

Felony Child Abuse – Aggravated Battery of an Infant (18 U.S.C. § 1153 & SDCL § 22-18-1.4)

Felony Child Abuse and Neglect (18 U.S.C. § 1153 & SDCL 26-10-1 & 26-8A-2(1), (2), (3) & (6))

Tampering with Evidence (18 U.S.C. § 1512(c)(1))

Accessory to First Degree Murder – Felony Murder (18 U.S.C. § 3)

False Statement (18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(2))

Misprision of a Felony (18 U.S.C. § 4)

The Grand Jury charges:

COUNT I

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in Indian country, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, an Indian person, did unlawfully and with malice aforethought, kill (name redacted), in the perpetration and attempted perpetration of child abuse against (name redacted), a child who had not attained the age of eighteen and was at least six years younger than Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, and (name redacted) was in Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind's, care and control, and death being caused by inflicting blunt trauma to the head and abdomen of (name redacted), all in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1111 & 1153.

COUNT II

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in Indian country, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, an Indian person, did knowingly assault (name redacted), a person who had not attained 18 years of age, said assault resulting in serious bodily injury, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 113(a)(6), 1153 and 3559(f)(3).

COUNT III

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in Indian country, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, an Indian person, did intentionally, knowingly, and recklessly cause serious bodily injury to (name redacted), a child who had not attained the age of three years, by causing any intracranial bleeding and damage to the brain of (name

redacted), by causing blunt impact with Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind's, fists and feet, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1153 & SDCL § 22-18-1.4.

COUNT IV

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in Indian country, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, an Indian person, did intentionally and knowingly abuse, expose, and cruelly punish (name redacted), a child who had not attained the age of seven years, by subjecting (name redacted) to an environment which constituted mistreatment, and was injurious to (name redacted)'s welfare, and which lacked proper parental care, and threatened (name redacted) with substantial harm, and resulted in serious bodily injury to (name redacted), all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1153 & SDCL §§ 26-10-1 & 26-8A-2(1),(2),(3) & (6).

COUNT V

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Sonya Dubray, did corruptly alter, destroy, mutilate, and conceal an object, to wit: clothing worn (name redacted) by laundering them and by cleaning the scene of the murder by use of bleach or a bleach-like cleaning substance, with the intent to impair its integrity or availability for use in, and obstruct and impede an official proceeding, the federal criminal case against her daughter, Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind for the murder of (name redacted), and attempted to do so, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(c)(1).

COUNT VI

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Sonya Dubray, knowing that an offense against the United States had been committed, to wit, First Degree Murder – Felony Murder, did receive, relieve, comfort, and assist Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, in order to hinder and prevent the apprehension, trial, and punishment of Katrina Pauline Shangreaux, a/k/a Katrina White Whirlwind, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 3.

COUNT VII

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Sonya Dubray, did willfully and knowingly make and cause to be made a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation in a matter within the jurisdiction of a department and agency of the United States, to wit: on July 28, 2016, the defendant, Sonya Dubray, told Federal Bureau of Investigation Special Agent Mark Lucas and Bureau of Indian Affairs Special Agent Fred Bennett that the victim was potty trained, a material fact as potty training was the catalyst for the child abuse and the defendant, Sonya Dubray, then and there well knew the statement and representation was false in that the victim was not potty trained, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(2).

COUNT VIII

On or about July 28, 2016, at Porcupine, in the District of South Dakota, the defendant, Sonya Dubray, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, to wit, child abuse and neglect of (name redacted), in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1153 & SDCL §§ 26-10-1 & 26-8A-2(1),(2),(3) & (6), and did conceal the same by not reporting to law enforcement the abuse of (name

redacted) and misled law enforcement as to the nature and extent of the abuse of (name redacted), and did fail, as soon as possible, to make known the same to some judge or other person in civil authority under the United States, all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 4.

A TRUE BILL:

NAME REDACTED

Foreperson

RANDOLPH J. SEILER UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

By: Likela